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TO THE CLERK OF THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT d@rﬁﬁﬁoﬁfi&%&
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK:W

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE THAT, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1441, defendant Apple Inc.
(“Apple”) hereby removes to this Court the state action below, which is within the originall
jurisdiction of this Court and properly removed under §§ 1332, 1441, 1446, and 1453.

PROCEDURAL HISTORY AND TIMELINES OF REMOVAL

1. On September 29, 2008, Plaintiff filed a purported class action captioned
Koschitzki, et al. v. Apple Inc., et al., Index No. 08-017995, against Defendants in the Supreme
Court of the State of New York, County of Nassau (*“State Court Action”).

2. Apple was served with the State Court Action Summons and Complaint on
October 6, 2008. This notice is therefore timely pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1446(b). Pursuant to 28
U.S.C. § 1446 (a), true and correct copies of all process, pleadings, and orders served upon.

Apple in the State Court Action are attached to this Notice as Exhibit A.
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3. The Supreme Court of New York for the County of Nassau is located within the
Eastern District of New York. 28 U.S.C. § 112(c). The Notice of Removal is therefore properly

filed in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1441(a).

NO JOINDER NECESSARY
4. No other Defendants are required to consent to this removal. 28 U.S.C. §
1453(b).
ALLEGATIONS OF THE COMPLAINT
5. This action is a putative class action against Defendants on behalf of New York

purchasers of Apple’s iPhone 3G. (Complaint (“Compl.”) § 32.) Apple’s iPhone 3G is sold by
Apple and AT&T and is supported by AT&T’s cellular network infrastructure. (Compl. §2.)
Plaintiff alleges that Apple and AT&T misrepresented the speed and quality of the iPhone and
3G network. (Compl. Y 15, 19, 24, 25.) In particular, Plaintiff alleges that, “[d]Jue to the
overloaded 3G network, iPhone users are commonly bumped to the slower EDGE network™ and
“firmware [updates have] not cured the number problems that iPhone users (including Plaintiff)
have experienced with their iPhones.” (Compl. 11 19, 23.) Plaintiff alleges that “Defendants
knew or should have known that the iPhones would not function properly, as advertised and
marketed, on the 3G network.” (Compl. §25.)

6. On behalf of Plaintiff and the putative class, the Complaint attempts to state
claims for: (1) violations of New York General Business Law § 349; (2) unjust enrichment; (3)
restitution; (4) breach of contract; (5) breach of express warranty; and (6) breach of implied
warranty. The Complaint seeks, inter alia, statutory damages, compensatory damages, actual
damages, punitive damages, injunctive relief, disgorgement, restitution, attorneys’ fees, and

costs. (Compl. 1 39-68.)
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7. Apple disputes Plaintiff’s allegations, believes the Complaint lacks merit, and
denies that Plaintiff or the putative class members have been harmed in any way.

BASIS FOR REMOVAL

8. This action is within the original jurisdiction of this Court, and removal is
therefore proper under the Class Action Fairness Act of 2005 (“CAFA”), 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d),
which grants district courts original jurisdiction over class actions in which the amount in |
controversy exceeds $5,000,000 and any member of the class of plaintiffs is a citizen of a state
different from any defendant. As set forth below, this action satisfies each of the requirements of
Section 1332(d)(2) for original jurisdiction under CAFA. See Estate of Pew v. Cardarelli, 527
F.3d 25, 30 (2d Cir. 2006).

0. Covered Class Action. This action meets the CAFA definition of a class action,

which is “any civil action filed under Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure or similar
State statute or rule of judicial procedure.” 28 U.S.C. §§ 1332(d)(1)(B), 1453(a) & (b). (Compl.
132.).

10.  Class Action Consisting of More than 100 Members. The Complaint alleges that
“Plaintiff believes that there are thousands of members of the proposed Class.” (Compl. § 33.)
Accordingly, based on Plaintiff’s allegation, the aggregate number of class members is greater
than 100 persons for purposes of 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(5)(B). |

11.  Diversity - Plaintiff. The required diversity of citizenship under CAFA is
satisfied because “any member of a class of plaintiffs is a citizen of a State different from any
defendant.” 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(2)(A). Plaintiff'is a citizen of New York State. (Compl, §4.)

12, Diversity — Defendant. Apple is “a California corporation and maintains its

principal executive offices at 1 Infinite Loop, Cupertino, California 95014.” (Compl. § 7.) Each
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member of the purported class is a citizen of a state (New York) different from Apple
{(California). Thus, according to the allegations of Plaintiff’s Complaint, the diversity
requirements of CAFA are satisfied as between Plaintiff and Apple. CAFA’s diversity
requirements are also satisfied as to AT&T.'

13, Amount in Controversy. Under CAFA, the claims of the individual class

members are aggregated to determine if the amount in controversy exceeds the required “sum or
value of $5,000,000, exclusive of interest and costs.” 28 U.S.C. §§ 1332(d)(2), (d)(6). The
Complaint alleges claims for violations of New York General Business Law § 349, unjust
enrichment, restitution, breach of contract, breach of express warranty, and breach of implied
warranty. Plaintiff alleges, inter alia, the recovery of “restitutionary and injunctive relief,
including: (a) compensatory, punitive and statutory damages; (b) disgorgement and restitution of
Defendants’ ill-gotten gains for unfair business practices, untrue and misleading advertising; and
(¢) disclosures and/or disclaimers on the outside of its box or advertising material prior to
making any electronics device purchase,” (Compl. § 3.), as well as “damages, in an amount to be
determined at trial.” (Compl. 9 45, 55, 61, 68.) Without conceding any merit to the
Complaint’s damages allegations or causes of action, the amount in controversy here satisfies
CAFA’s jurisdictional threshold.

14.  The amount in controversy clearly exceeds $5,000,000. The Complaint aIleges

that “Defendants charged and received payment for the iPhones that they designed, marketed,

! Plaintiff alleges AT&T is “a Delaware corporation,” with principal executive offices in
Texas. (Compl. §8.) Apple notes that AT&T Mobility, LLC, the AT&T entity that provides 3G
network support for Apple’s iPhone 3G, is headquartered in Atlanta, Georgia. Irrespective of
whether the “AT&T” plaintiff generically named in his Complaint is AT&T Inc. (Texas) or
AT&T Mobility, LLC (Georgia), the diversity requirements of 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(2)}(A) are
satisfied as between Plaintiff and AT&T as well.
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manufactured, distributed, and sold. Defendants should not be permitted to retain those
payments in equity and good conscience, as those payments were obtained in contravention of
the law.” (Compl. § 50.) Plaintiff seeks “[aJn Order . . . requiring Defendants to refund the
proceeds” to Plaintiff and the putative class members. (Compl. at p. 14.) The iPhone 3G sells
for a retail price of $199 for the 8GB model and $299 for the 16GB model. (Declaration of
James Bean §2.) The Complaint alleges a class of all New York residents who purchased the
iPhone 3G. (Compl. 4 32.) Since the iPhone 3G was launched in July 2008, 6.9 million iPhone
3G units have been sold worldwide, and Apple has sold in excess of 100,000 iPhone 3G units
through Apple’s Retail Stores in New York alone.” (Declaration of James Bean {1 3, 4.) To the
extent each class member is claiming a full refund equivalent to even the lowest price for the
iPhone 3G, the amount in controversy Plaintiff alleges is at least three times the minimum and
easily meets the amount-in-controversy requirement (even without considering AT&T’s
additional sales of the iPhone 3G in New York).

15.  Thus, Plaintiff’s allegations place in controversy an amount plainly in excess of
$5,000,000. While Apple disputes that it is liable to Plaintiff or any of the putative class
members, or that Plaintiffs or the putative class members suffered injury or incurred damages in
any amount whatsoever, for purposes of satisfying the jurisdictional prerequisites of CAFA, the
matter in controversy exceeds $5,000,000.

16.  Amount in Controversy — Punitive Damages. The Complaint also seeks punitive

damages. (Compl. § 3.) Punitive damages are considered part of the amount in controversy.

A.F A. Tours, Inc. v. Whitchurch, 937 F.2d 82, 87 (2d Cir. 1991) (“[I]f punitive damages are

2 The iPhone 3G is also sold through AT&T retail stores. AT&T’s sales data would
further increase the amount in controversy over the jurisdictional minimum.
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permitted under the controlling law, the demand for such damages may be included in
determining whether the jurisdictional amount is satisfied”’); Kocienda v. U-Haul Int'l, Inc., No.
3:07CV954, 2007 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 64938, *3 (D. Conn. Sept. 4, 2007) (including punitive
damages in determining amount in controversy under CAFA). Apple believes that no damages,
compensatory, punitive, or statutory, are appropriate under New York law and should or will be
awarded in this case; however, for purposes of the amount in controversy requirement, claimed
punitive damages alleged in the Complaint may be considered.

17. No CAFA Exclusions. The action does not fall within any exclusion to removal

jurisdiction recognized by 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d), and therefore this action is removable pursuant
to CAFA, 28 U.S.C. §§ 1332(d) and 1453(b).

CONCLUSION

18.  For all the reasons stated above, this action is within the original jurisdiction of
this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d). Accordingly, this action is removable pursuant to 28
U.S.C. §§ 1441(a) and 1453.

NOTICE TO STATE COURT AND ADVERSE PARTY

19.  Counsel for Apple certifies that pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1446(d), copies of this
Notice of Removal will be filed with the Clerk of the State of New York, County of Nassau, as
an exhibit to a Notice of Filing of Notice of Removal to Federal Court, and served upon counsel
for Plaintiff, as well as counsel for AT&T. A copy of the Notice being filed in state court is

attached hereto (without exhibits) as Exhibit B.
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WHEREFORE, Defendant Apple gives notices that the above-described action pending
against it in the Supreme Court of the State of New York, Nassau County, is removed to this

Court.

Dated: November 4, 2008
New York, New York

N & FOERSTER LLP

LA AA — W e
fmie A. Lexvitt (jlﬁ@mofo.com)
/
Attorfeys for Defendant

APPLE INC.

1290 Avenue of the Americas
New York, NY 10104-0050
212.468.8000

T
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SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK

COUNTY OF NASSAU
X
. IndexNo: D& - 199§
AVI KOSCHITZKI, on Behalf of Himse!f and g
all Others similarly situated, :  DatoPurchesed:
Plaintiff, PlaintifY designates Nassau County
. astheplace of trial.
m ' The basis of the venus is
APPLE INC. and AT&T INC., : PlaintifPs place of residence,
et ———— .
Defendmnts,. ¢ SUMMONS
*  Plaintiff resides at:
-+ 1021 Westwood Road
' Woodmers, NY 11598 _
X RECEIVED

* To the abbve named Defendants: ' SEP 2. 2008

Youmhmbysmnmonedmamwcrthccempluintin' .gnd 1o 1
copy of your answer, er, if the complaint is not served with 1R SEin Nl 2 ST LT
notice of sppearance, on the Plaintiff's Attomey(s) within 20 days after the service of this
snmmonu,excmsivaofﬂwdayofmvioc-(ofwithhwdaysaﬂcrthemiceiscomplete
fft!ﬁsqmmonsiqutpmnmﬂyddiwredtom“dthhﬂusmeofNewYodq;mdin
caseofyourfaﬂmtoappearbransvbr,judgmbntwmbetalwuagaﬁmyuubydefault
for the relief demanded in the complaint, . )

Dated: Septeinber 29, 2008 STEIN FARKAS & SCHWARTZ LLP

. _—
S

Brooklyn, NY 11229
Tel.: (718) 645-5600
Fax: (718) 645-3767

Attorneys for Plaimtiff




Defendant’s address:
Apple, Inc.

1 Infinite Loop
Cupertino, CA 95014




SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK

COUNTY OF NASSAU
X
AVIKOSCHITZKI, on Behalf of Himselfand : Index No, ©§-©V#145
all Others Similarly Situated, :
: CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
o © Jury Trial mumn
; Juy j i
Defendants,  * NASSAU COUNTY -
X COUNYY CLERK'S OFFICE

Plaintiff Avi Koschitzki {"Koschitzki™ or “Plaintiff") brings this action on behalf of
himself and all other cohsumers gimilarly situsted, and alleges upon information and belief,
formed after an inquiry reasonable under the circumstanoes, except as to those allegations which
pertain to the named Plainfiff (which are alicged on personal knowledge), as follows:

NATURE OF THE ACTION

1. Thisis 2 class action brought ageinst Dofendants Apple Inc. (“Apple™) and AT&T
Inc. (“AT&T™) (collectively, “Defendants™) to recover for the harm caused by Defmdaniz‘
deceptive, improper or unlawful conduct in it design, marketing, manufacturing, distribution,
and sale of Apple’s iPhone 3G series of mobile phones. The iPhone 3G series mobile phones
include the series manufactured and sold by Defendants as the 3G-8GB iPhone and the 3G-16GB
iPhone (collectively, the “iPhones™). Defendants® conduct constitutes unfair pmcuaa under the
New York Deceptive Practices Act (General Business La'w'§ 349} (the “GBL™), as well »s
negligent misrepresentation and ugjust corichment, and a breach of express and implied

waranties,




2, Plaintiff and other consumers purchased defective iPhones designed, marketed,
manufactured, distributed, and sold by Defeadants (the “Class™). Based upon information and
belief the 3G iPhopes demand too much power fiom the 3G bandwidths and the AT&T
infrastructure is insufficient to handle this overwhelming 3G signal based on the high volume of
3G iPhones it and Apple have sold. ’

3. Based upon Defendants’ violations of GBL and/or the harm caused to Plaintiff
and members of thé Class as a result of Defendants’ improper conduct, Plaintiff and members of
the Cless seck restitutionary and injunctive relief, incleding: (a) compensatory, punitive and
statutory damages; (b) disgorgement and restitution of Defendants’ ill-gotten gains for unfair
business practices, untrue and misleading advertising; and {c) disclosures and/or disclaimers on
the outside of its boxes or advertising materisl prior to making any eléctronics device purchase.,

PARTIES

4, Plaintiff is, and at all relevant times has besn, a resident of Nassau County, New
York. Pleintiff purchased an iPhone, which was advertised, distributed, and/or soid by Apple,
and signed an agreement for menthly service provided by AT&T. Moreover, Plaintiff has
suffered injury in fact and has lost money and/or property as a result of Defendents' acts, ie.,
their engagement in false and misleading advertising concerning the speed end performance of
the iPhones,

s. Plaintiff either directly or indirectly relied upon, inter alia, the representations,
advertising and other promotional materials which were prepared and approved by Defendants
and their agents and disseminated on the face of the iPhones’ containers, through local and
national advertising medis, including Defendants' respective internet websites, containing the

misrepresentations and/or omissions alleged hereinafter,




6. Pleintiff also relied upon the. representations of Defendants in rescarching which
product to purchase. Specifically, Plaintiff took into account the way Defendants represented the
speed and pecformance of the 3G network and the iPhones to Plaintiff, the proposed Class and .
the general public.

7. Defendant Apple is a California corporation and maintaing its principal executive
offices at | Infinite Loop, Cupertine, California 95014, Apple designs, masufactures, and sells
personal computers, portable digital music players, and mobile communiedtion deviees, as well
as related software, services, peripherals, end networking solutions worldwide, Apple also has
significant contacts within Nassau County, New York, and the activities complained of herein
occurred, at least in part, in Nassaw County, New York. According to Apple’s website, its
products can be purchased directly from Apple through its website, at “Apple’s own retail store
locations around the country” or at “théusends of Apple authorized reselless.”

8.  Defendant AT&T is a Delawaré corporation and maintains its principal executive
offices at 208 South Akard Street, Dallas, Texas 75202. AT&T provides telecommunications
services to consumers and businesscs in the United States and internationally. It provides
wireless services, including local wireless communications, long-distance, and roaming services
with various postpaid and prepaid service plans. AT&T i3 licensed to do, and is doing, business
in New York and throughout the United States. R tranaacts business in Nassau County, New
York and at all relevant times designed, manufactured, promoted, marketed, distributed, and/or
" sold service plans that arc one of the subjects of this complaint, throughout New York and the
United States. AT&T also has significant contacts with Nassau County, New York and the

gctivities complained of herein occurred, at least in part, in Nassau County, New York,




9. At all relevant times, Apple and AT&T made and continue to make
misrepresentations in the promoting, advertising, and/or sale of its 3G iPhone and service plans
described below. According to an August 13, 2008 news article published by the Associated
Press, for example, the iPhones exhibit “spotty wircless broadband connectivity... most likely
" resulted from & hardware problem introduced during mass production.”

10. At all relevant times, the iPhones were defective and would not provide its
inherent functionality and/or the functionsality expected by consumers. This has been evidenced
by the increasingly common problem suffered by Plaintiff and thousands of members of the
proposed Class.

JURISDICTION AND YENUE
1. The Court has jurisdiction over Apple and AT&T pursuant to New York Civil

Practice Law & Rules (*CPLR™} § 302 because Defendants are authorized to, and do, conduct
ond transacd business n the Siste of New York,

12, ' 'This Coust also has jurisdiction over each Defendant named herein because each
Defendant is a foreign corporation anthorized to do business in New York and registered with
the New York Secretary of State, or does sufficient business, has sufficient minimum contacts
with New York, or otherwise intentionally avails themselves of the New York ‘market, through
the promotion, marketing, advertising of émployment positions, and/or sale of their products in
New York. Therefore, this renders the exercise of jurisdiction by the New York courts
permissible under traditional notions of fair play and substantial justice.

13.  Venue js further proper in this County pursuant to CPLR 509, as Plaintiff
designates Nassau County as the place of trial,

SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS




14.  Inor around the summer of 2008, Apple and AT&T began marketing the iPhones,
The iPhones’ launch was preceded and followed by en aggressive marketing campaign,
including radio, television, internet, and print advertisemeats. '

15.  In their advertising campaign, Defendants made mumercus statements regarding
the quality and compatibility of the 3G network protocol or standard included in the iPhone,
Indeed, Apple’s own website touts the iPhones as being “Twice as fast. Half the Price.” as
compared to prior models.

16, In conjunction with each sale, Defendants marketed, advertised and warranted
that the iPhones were fit for the ordinary use of receiving phone calls, & GPS device, intemet
browsing, e-mail, and other data streams or sources at 3G spoeds, '

17.  Apple manufactured, marketed, advertised, warranted and sold the iPhones, either
directly or through its authorized distribution channels.

18.  Apple manufactured and distributed the iPhones with the intention its consumers
would purchase, regardless of place of purchase, or the location where customers actually use
them. The iPhones entered the stream of commerce, were distributed, and were ultimately put up
for sele, and sold to Plaintiff and other consumers in Nassau County, as well as purchasers
throughout the State of New York. ‘

19.  Due to the overloaded 3G network, iPhone users are commonly bumped to the
Mﬁ EDGE network despite being in geographiical aress allegedly zich with 3G network
coverage.

-20.  Apple has issued firmware updates for the iPhones. In July 2008, for example,
Appie released version 2.0 of OS X iPhone software for the iPhones and the iPod Touch which

included new features like access to Apples App Store, increased security, and enterprise



capabilities. Suvbsequently, Apple released version 2.02 of O8 X iPhone software for the
iPhones,

21.  The firmware updates, howsver, did not resolvs the problems experienced by
users (including Plaintiff),

22.  Then, on or about Scptember 15, 2008, Apple released version 2.1 of OS X
iPhone software.

23,  Again, this firmware has not curcd the numerous problems that iPhone users
(including Plaintiff) have and continue to experience with their iPhones.

24.  Despite the fact that Plaintiff and the Class have experienced widespread and
systemic problems concerning the iPhones proper operation on the 3G network, defendants
continued to tout the iPhones and 3G network.

25.  Upon information and belief, Defendants knew or should have known that the
iPhones would not finction propetly, as advertiscd and marketed, on the 3G network.

26.  Apple, in fact, was forced to remove misleading advertising in the United
Kingdom regerding the iPhones’ capabilities.

Allegations Specific to Plaintiff

27,  In the summer of 2008, Plaintiff purchased an iPhone and signed a Service Plan
with AT&T.

28.  In the summer of 2008, Plaintiff noticed that he was consistently being bumped
off of the 3G network to the slower EDGE network.

29,  Starting in or dbont July 2008, Plaintiff installed. each of the recommended
firmware upgrades as suggested by Defendants. Plaintiff's iPhone’s 3G netwark service has not
been improved despite Defendants’ claims to the contrary, and in fact, such service has



continued to deteriorate and the iPhione has ceased to operate as advertised and as specified by
Defendants,
Defendants’ Conduct as Applied to the Class as a Wihole

30.  Plaintiff and members of the Class relied upon the way Defendants represented
the speed and performance on the 3G network.

31.  On Internet or Online blogs and forums, including on Apple’s own website,
customers and users voiced their complaints regarding the lack of functionality of their iPhones
on the 3G network. |

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

32.l ‘This action is brought as a class action pursusnt to Article 9 of the CPLR.
Plaintiff brings this action both in his individual capacity and es 8 class action against
Defendants on behalf of himself and the Class, which consists of all New York State residents
who purchased defective 3G iPhones designed, marketed, manufactured, distributed, and sold by
Defendants. Excluded from the Class are Defendants, including any entity in which Defendants
have a controlling interest, or which is & parent or subsidiary of, or which is controlled by
Defendants, and the officers, directors, affiliates, legal representatives, heirs, predecessors,
successors, or assigns of Defendants,

33.  The members of the Class (“Class Members™) are so mumerous that joinder of all
members is impracticable. While the exact number of Class Members is unknown to Plaintiff at
this time and can only be ascertained through appropriate discovery, Plaintiff believes that there
are thousands of members of the proposed Class.

34,  Common questions of law and fact exist as to all Class Members and prodominate
over any questions which affect only individual Class Members. These common questions of
law end fact include:




(8  Whether Defendants engaged in false and wisleading advertising
concerning the speed and performance of the iPhones;

(®) Whether Defendants engaged in false and misleading advertising
concerning the speed and performance of the 3G network;

(c)  Whethor Defendants knowingly concealed the defective design of the
iPhones;

(®)  Whether Defendants® business practices violate New York law for which
Plaintiff and Class Members may recover damages; ‘

(e)  Whother Plaintiff and Class Members ere eatitled to statotory relief:

()  Whether Plaintiff and Class Members ars eatitled to punitive relisf;

® Whether Plaintiff and Class Members are ontitled to compensatory relief:

(h)  Whether Plaintiff and Class Mcmbers have sustained damdages, and, if 30,
what is the proper measure of damages.

35, Plaintiff"s claims are typical of the claims of Class Members as he and each Class
Member sustained, and continues to sustain, dameges arising from Defendants’ wrongdoing
Plaintiff’s damages, as well as the damages of each Class Meriber, were caused by Defendants’
wrongful conduct, as alleged herein.

36.  Plaintiff will fairty and adequately protect the interests of those Class Members he
secks to represent and has no interests that are antagonistic to the interests of any other Class
Member. Plaintiff has retained counse] who have experience and success in complex litigation.

37. A class action is superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient
adjudication of this controversy, sihce joinder of all the individual Class Members is




impracticable. Purthermore, becanse the damages W. and continue to be sufferéd, by each
it Class Mergbes sy b rlatively small, the expense and burden of ndividual ltigation
would meke it very difficult or impossible for individua! Class Members to redress the wrongs
done to each of them individually and the burden imposed on the judicial system would be
enormous.

38.  In addition, the prosecution of sepamte actions by the individual Class Members
would create & risk of incongistent or varying adjudications with vespect o individual Class
Members, which would establish incompatible standoards of conduct for Defendants. In contrast,
the conduct of this actionas a class action presents far fower management difficulties, conserves
judicial resources and the parties® resources, and protects the rights of each Class Member.

FIRST.CAUSE OF ACTION
Violation of Section 349 of the New York General Business Law

39,  Plaintiff repeats and re-allegea the allegations conteined in all preceding
paragrnphsasiffullysutfoqlhhuﬁu. |

40. Defendants engaged in false and misleading advertising concerning the speed and
performance of the iPhones.

41.  As fully alleged above, by advertising, marketing, distribution, and/or selling the
iPhones to Plaintiff and Class Members, Defendents. engaged in, and continue to engage in,
deceptive sets and practices.

42, In connection with the Service Plan fees charged by AT&T to Plaintiff and other
Class Members, Defendants materially mislead Plaintiff and Class Members and Defendants’

acts and practices were improper.

43.  Plaintiff and the members of the Class further soek to enjoin such unlawful
deceptive acts and practices as described above. Each of the Class members will be irveparably




hermed unless the unlawful actions of Defendants are enjoined in that Apple and AT&T will
continus o falsely and misteadingly advartise with rospect to the speed and performance of the
‘Phones. Towards that end, Plaintiff and the Class request an order granting them injunctive
relief 25 follows: order disclosures andor disclajmers on the outside of the iPhone boxes or
advertising material prior to making any eloctronics device purchase. Absent injunctive relief,
Defendants will continue to market, distribute, and sell iPhones to the detriment of its customers.
Plaintiff has not previously asked for such injunctive relief.

44. I this regard, Defendants have violated, and continue to violate, §349 of the
GBL, which makes deceptive acts and practices unlawful. '

45.  As a direct and proximate result of Defendents’ violation of §549 of the GBL as
described above, Plaintiff and Class Members have been injured and have suffered damages, in

an amonnt to be determined at trial.

SECOND,CAUSE OF ACTION
Unjust Enrichment

46. Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges the allegations contsined in all preceding
paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

47. By means of their material misconduct, as set forth above, Defendants induced
Plaintiff and Class Members to pay for the iPhones and their associated Service Plans. Asa
consequence of such misconduct, Plaintiff and Class Members were forced to incur costs they
would not have otherwise been willing to pay absent the misrepresentations and misconduct by
Defendants. |

48. By virtue of the foregoing, Defendants have been unjustly enriched in an amount
yet to be determined with respect to Plaintiff and Class Members to the extent that Defendants
received end kept revenues collected from the iPhones designed, marketed, manufactared,
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distributed, and sold by Defendants, which they would not have received sbsent their improper

conduct.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
Restitution

49.  Plaintiff reposts snd roalleges the allegations contmined in ail preceding
paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

" 50, By virtue of deoeptive and unlawfbi busincss prectices, Dofendants charged and
received payment for the iPhones that they designed, marketed, manufactured, disttibuted, and
sold. Defendants should not be permitted to retain those payments in equity and good
consmeme, as those payments were cbtained in contravention of law, To permit Defendants to
retain those payments would wrongfully confera heneﬁtuponl)@fendmt's.

51. Under the circomstances, it would be inequitsble for Defendants to retain these
. .

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Breach of Contract

52.  Plaintiff repeats and ro-alleges each and every allegation contained above as if
fully set forth herein. '

53, In comection with thie relationship between Defendants and Plaintff and the
Closs Members, Dafendants assumed utics and contractual obligations, express and/or implied,
to provide 3G network service to the iPhones.

54, Defendants communicated their contractual obligations {and ali terms and
conditions of the same) to Plaintiff and the members of the Class through various sources,

incloding AT&T’s Service Plan,
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$5. As a direct-and proximate result of Defendants’ improper or wrongful activities,
Plaintiff and the Class Members suffered damages and are entitled to damages in en amount io
be proven at trial (or have been irreparably harmed by Defendants’ conduct). '

56.  Plaintiff and members of the Class have fulfilled all conditions precedent with
respect to the applicable contractual obligations or in relation to this action, or, in the alternative,
the conditions precedent have otherwise been waived.,

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Breach of Express Warranty

§7.  Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges the allegetions contained in all preceding
paragraphs as if fully set forth herein,

58,  Starting in or about the summer of 2008, Defendants represented, in writing and
otherwise, that the compatibility and quality of the 3G network protocol or standard included in
the iPhones would be twios as fast as prior models. Those representations, promises and
assurances became part of the basis pfthe bargain between Apple and Plaintiff (and the Class)
und thereby constituted an éxpress warranty.

59. Defendants then sold the iPhones to Plaintiff and members of the Class and, in
turn, Plaintiff and members of the Class, purchased Apple's product, the iPhones.

60. Apple, however, breached the express wamanty in that tho iPhones wers
inherently defective and would not provide the functionality expected by consumers and/or
would not last as long ss reasonsbly expooted by consumers. As 2 result of the stated breach,
Plaintiff end the members of the Class did not, in fact, receive goods as warnranted by Apple.

61.  As a direct or proximate result of this breech of warranty by Apple, Plaintiff and
the Class have been damaged in an amount to be determined at trial.

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION
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Breach of Implied Warranty

62.  Plaintiff repeats and re-glleges the alflegations contained in all preceding
paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

. 63.  Starting in or sbout July 2008, Plaintiff and members of the Class sought to
purchase iPhones with all the features and qualities that Apple claimed were maintained by the
iPhones, including the iPhones’ casing, Plaintiff and the Class relied on Apple’s industry
reputation, skill, expertise and judgment to furnish a suitable product for the stated purpose.

64, When Apple zold the iPhone — directly or indirectly -~ to Plaintiff and members of
the Class, Plaintiff and the Class bought these goods from Apple in reliance on Apple’s industry
reputation, skill, expertise and judgment.

65. At the time of manufacturing, advertising and/or sale, Apple knew or had reason
to know the particular purpose for which the goods were required or would be used. Applé knew
that Plaintiff and members of the Class were relying on Apple's industry reputation, skill,
expertise and judgment to manufacture and fumish a suitable digital camera, thereby creating
and confirming an implied warranty that the products or goods — the iPhones — were fit for their
stated and advertised purpose.

66.  Apple, however, breached the implied warranty,

67.  Plaintiff and members of the Class did not receive suitable products or geods in
the form of the iPhone, The iPhones were not fit for the particular purpose for which they were
sought, purchased and required in that it did not have the features, quality or dursbility

represented by Apple.
68.  As a direct or proximate result of this breach of implied warranty by Apple,

Plaintiff and the Class have been damaged in an amount to be determined at trial.
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WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendants for himself and Class
Members, as follows:

A.  An Order determining that the action is a proper class action, maintainsble under
CPLR 901, and certifying Plaintiff as representative of the Class;

B AnOrdwlwmdingmhnoly,oompﬂBatmymdpmﬁﬁvcdmagesinfavorof
Plaintiff and the other Class Members against Defendants for Defendants’ violation of the GBL,
and for all damages sustained as a result of Defendants’ wrongdoing, in an amount to be proven
at trial, including interest thereon;

C.  An Order declaring the Defendants’ practices to be wnlawful, improper, unfuir,
and/or deceptive and requiring Defendants to refund the proceeds from the fees to Plaintiff and
Class Members;

D.  An Order awarding Plaintiff and Class Members their actual damages for the
wrongful acts complained of, along with pre-judgment and post-judgment interest;

E. A temporary, preliminary or permanent injunction enjoining Defendants from
continving to disseminate false and misleading advertising concerning the speed and
performance of the [Phones and the 3G nefwork;

F. Disgorgement and restitution of any ill-goften gains thet Defendants obtained
through their disseminstion of false and misleading statements regarding the iPhones;

G.  An Order awarding Plaintiff and Class Members their reasonable costs and
expenses incurred in this action, including counsel fees and expert fees;

H. Suchoﬂnrnndﬁuﬂ:erre]iefasﬂownfmuydeemjlstmdproper;and

14




L Anyotheraudﬁmhareliefmwhichthsynmybemﬁﬂedatlaworinequity.
Dated: September 29, 2008 STEIN FARKAS & SCAWARTZ LLP

Brooklyn, New York 11229
Tel,: (718) 645-5600
Fax: (718) 645.3767

Attorneys for Plainttff
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;

At Partl of the Supreme Court of the State

of New York, held in and for the County of

Nassau, at the Courthouse located at 100

Suprems Court Drive, Mineols, N, on the 7.
day of October, 2008,

PRESENT: ﬁ /
HONORABLE ( MOTION SEQUENCE
j ORIGINAL RETURN DATEI ——re—
SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK .
COUNTY OF NASSAU A.C. LannNACL
AVI KOSCHITZKI, on Behalf of Himself and | Index No. 08-017995
all Others Similarly Situated, _
Plaintiff, ORDER TO EEQE CAUSE

o

~KPPLE INC., and AT&T mc

:\\-

Defendanis.

Upon reading and filing the annexed Affirmation of Jamie A. Levitt, swormn to October
22, 2008, and upon all proceodings heretofore had herein, it is heroby:
ORDERED that Plaintiff Avi Koschitzki or its attomoys show cause beforo this Couft,
100 Suprems Court Drive, Miacols, New York 11501, Raom __, on'stebec, -\, 2008 at
{7\ i'gu @ m., or as soon thereafler as counsel may be heard, why an order should not be

o

o6
ny-840725
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made and extered extending the time within which Defendants Apple Inc. and AT&T, Inc.' may
Tespond to the Complaint through December 3, 2008; and it is further
ORDERED that pending the hearing and determination of this motion, Plaintiff is
‘0@ mw&omseeﬁngﬂlceuty'ofdefaultagahstwendm;anditisﬁnﬂm
ORDEREDthatsaviucofacopyofthiSOrdertoShow » together with the papers

o174 @onwﬁﬁitmmwgionwmwwfa_@k:' tsi*nF &

ORDERED that answering papers, ifany,shallbemedbyhandmattonmysfor
Defendant Apple Inc., Momison & Foerster LLP, a1 their offices at 1290 Avenue of the
W Americas, New York, NY 10104-0050, and Defendant AT&T, Inc., Crowell & Moring LLP, at

\)’7 JERDERED

\t tha PEY-Papers—ity NI DCServed Y- hund-umers-ttm

ENTER

t—_’c ] IS.C. "

!

Pursuant to N.Y.C.P.L.R. 320 and 321 1, nothing hevein shall be deemed 2 waiver by
AT&T, Inc. of its rig!tt to object to the-Court’s assestion of personal jurisdiction over it in ﬂ::ls
lawsuit, or an admission by AT&T, Inc. that it is a proper party to this lawsuit or that it consents
to the Court's jurisdiction,

ny-840725
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SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK
COUNTY OF NASSAU

AVI KOSCHITZK]I, on Behalf of Himself and | Index No. 08-017995
all Others Similarly Situated,

Plaintiff,

.

APPLE INC,, and AT&T INC,,

Defendants.

JAMIE A. LEVITT, an attomey duly admitted to practice before this Court, pursuant to
CPLR 2106, affirms the truth of the following under penaity of perjury:

1., Tama partner at Morrison and Foerster LLP, attorneys for Defendant Apple Inc.
I make this affirmation in support of Defendants Apple Inc.’s and AT&T, Inc.’s’ application,
pursuant to CPLR § 3012(d), for a thirty-seven (37) day extension of time within which
Defendants may respond to the Complaint. If this application is granted, the due date for
Defendants’ response to the Complaint would be December 3,2008.

2. As discussed below, Lynn E. Parseghian, counsel for AT&T, Inc., and I have
contacted Plaintiff’s counsel regarding our request for an extension of time to respond to the
Complaint. Plaintiff’s counsel indicated that they were agreeable to an extension of time, but
due to the Jewish holidays, the parties have been unable to finalize an agreement, Accordingly,
because Defendants do not believe that an agreement can be finalized prior to October 27, 2008,

! Pursuant to N.Y.C.P.L.R. 320 and 321 1, nothing herein shall be deemed a waiver by
AT&T, Inc. of its right to object to the Court’s assertion of personal jurisdiction over it in this
lawsuit, or an admission by AT&T, Inc. thatitis a proper party to this Jawsuit or that it consents to
the Court’s jurisdiction.

ny-840720



the current deadline for Defendants to file a response to the Complaint, Defendants are
| compelled to seek the Court’s assistance.

3. This is the first request for an extension which has been made on behalf of
Defendants.

Basis For The Requested Relief

4. Plaintiff’s Class Action Complaint seeks monetary damages allegedly arising out
of harm allegedly caused by “Defendants’ deceptive, improper or unlawful conduct in its design,
marketing, manufacturing, distribution, and sale of Apple’s iPhone 3g series of mobile phones.”
This is not an action brought pufsuant to CPLR § 3213.

5. Defendants were served with the complaint on October 6, 2008. Defendants’
response to the Complaint is currently due on or before October 27, 2008.

6. 1left a message for Joshua Farkas at Stein Farkas & Schwartz, Plaintiff's counse],
on October 7, 2008 regarding Defendants’ request for an extension of time 10 respond 1o the
Complaini. Ms. Parseghian also called Mr. Farkas the week of October 13, 2008 and left a
message asking him to return her call regarding a request for an extension of time to respond to
the Complaint. On October 17, 2008, Shua Felbstein, another attorney et Stein Farkas &
Schwartz LLP, returned Ms. Parseghian’s call. Mr. Felbstein said that Plaintiff’s counsel were
agreeable to an extension of time for Defendants to respond 1o the Cornplaint. Mr, Felbstein,
however, said that he would call Ms. Parseghian back after conferring with his colleagues on the
issue she raised in that conversation about AT&T, Inc. not being the proper defendant entity in
this lawsuit and substituting AT&T, Inc. with AT&T Mobility LLC as the defendant,

7. Because Ms. Parseghian did not hear back from Mr. Felbstein, on October 21,

2008, Ms. Parseghian and I called Mr. Farkas. We reached his voicemail and his recorded

ny-840720



message stated that the office was closed for a holiday. We thus lefi o message for Mr, Farkas
stating that in light of the timing, we would be filing an application for an extension of time to
respond to the Complaint. We further advised that we would be stating in our Ppapers that
Plaintiff’s counse} had been agreeable to an extension but, because of the holidays, the parties
were unable to finalize the agreement.

8. As of the date of this Affirmation, neither Ms. Parseghian nor I have heard back
from Plaintiff’s counsel,

9. The additional time to respond to the Complaint is required so that Defendants
can fully assess the allegations Plaintiff has raised and devise a strategy in response therefo.

10.  Defendants are requesting a thirty-seven (37) day extension of time so that the
Tesponse to the Complaint would be dye shortly afier the Thanksgiving holiday.

1. Defendants respectfully request that this Court grent its request for a 37-day
adjournment of its time to respond to the Complaint. Additionally, Defendants respectfully
Tequest that, until such time as the instant application is heard and decided, Plaintiff be ordered
not to seek entry of default against Defepdants,

12. There has been no prior application for the relief sought herein.

ny-840720




OFFICE GOPY

SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK

COUNTY OF NASSAU
AVI KOSCHITZKI, on Behalf of Himself and | Index No. 08-017995
all imilarly Si ,
Others Similarly Situated Hon, Angela G. 1 .
Plaintiff, ' :

v STIPULATION

SG:= Hd 1213086002

APPLEINC,, and AT&TINC.,
Defendants,

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED, by and between the undersigned
counsel for all partics, that the last day for Defendants Apple Inc. and AT&T Inc.! to answer or
move with respect to the complaint is extended from Monday, October 27, 2008 to Monday,
November 24, 2008.

1T IS FURTHER STIPULATED AND AGREED that the hearing scheduled for
Wednesday, November 5, 2008, at 9:30 AM, regarding the order to show cause for an exterision
of Defendants’ answering time is no longer necessary.

IT IS FURTHER STIPULATED AND AGREED that no provision of this
Stipulation and Order shall be construed as a waiver of, and Defendants expressly reserve, any
and all defenses. .

This stipulation may be signed in counterparts and faxed signatures will be

deemed original signatures.

. Pursuant to N.Y.C.P.L.R. 320 and 321}, nothing herein shall be deemed a waiver by
AT&T, Inc. of its right to object to the Court’s assertion of personal jurisdiction over it in this
lawsuit, or an admission by AT&T, Inc. that it is a proper party to this lawsuit or that it consents
to the Court’s jurisdiction.

s
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Dated: New York, New York
October 24, 2008

STEIN FARKAS & SCHWARTZ LLP
By:
Joshua Farkas, Esq.
i 1639 Bast 13* Street

New York, New York 10104 Brooklyn, New York 11229

(212) 468-3000 (718) 645-5600

Attorneys for Defendant Apple Inc. Attorneys for Plaintiffs
CROWELL & MORING LLP
By:

Steven D. Greenblatt, Esq.

153 East 53" Street

31 Floor

New York, New York 10022

212-223-4000

Attorneys for Defendant AT&T Inc.




Duted: New York, New York
October 24, 2008

MORRISON & FOERSTER LLP

By:_

Jamie A. Levitt, Esqg.

1290 Avenve of the Americas
New York, New York 10104
(212) 468-8000

Atomneys for Defendant Apple Inc,

CROWELL & MORING LLP

By:

Steven D. Greenblatt, Esq.
153 Bast 53" Street

31* Floor

New York, New York 10022
212-223-4000

Attomneys for Defendant AT&T Inc.

STEIN FARKAS & SCHWARTZ LLP

shiinFh .c.-
539 Bast 13%
Brooklyn, New York 11229
{718) 645-5600

Attorneys for Plaintiffs




Dated; New York, New York
October 24, 2008

" MORRISON & FOERSTER LLp

By:

Jamic A. Levitt, Bsq,
1290 Avemia of the Americas

New York, New York 10104
(212) 468-8000

Attormeys for Defendant Apple Ino.

CROWELL & MORING LLP

Steven . Gresnblatt, Bsq.
143 Bast 53" Street

31" Floor

Now York, New York 10022
212-223-4000

-

L , P i
1001 Pennsyivenia Avenus, N.W,

Washington, D.C. 20004
202-624-2500

STEIN FARRAS & SCHWARTZ LLP

By:
Joshma Farkns, Esq,

1639 Bast 132 Street
Brooklyn, New York 11229
(718) 645-5600

Atiorneys for Plaintiffs
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SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK

COUNTY OF NASSAU
X .
AVIKOSCHITZKI, on Behalf of Himsclf and Index No. 08-017995
all Others similarly situated,
CLASS ACTI
Plaintiff, ASS ACTION
-against- :  DEFENDANT APPLE INC.’S
:  NOTICE OF FILING OF
Defendant.
X

TO PLAINTIFF, HIS COUNSEL OF RECORD, AND THE CLERK OF THE STATE OF NEwW
YORK, COUNTY OF NASSAU:

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the undersigned has filed a Notice of Removal of this
action in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of New York. A true and
correct copy of said Notice of Removal (without exhibits) is attached hereto as Exhibit A and is
served and filed herewith. Accordingly, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1446(d), this action is removed
to the United States District Court for the Eastern District of New York, and this Court shall

proceed no further with this action uniess and until the case is remanded.

sf-2596313




Dated: New York, New York MORRISON & FOERSTER
November Y , 2008 '

. AL A
\/gn’nie A. Lgpiyﬁ/levit(@ﬁofo.com)
/J 90 Avenue of the Americas ‘
‘ ew York, NY 10104-0050
212.468.8000

Attorneys for Defendant
Apple Inc.

sf-2596313



